
BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

JANUARY 24, 2018

5:00PM

Sault Ste. Marie Community Rooms A and B

www.algomapublichealth.com



11. . Call to OrderCall to Order

a. Appointment of Board of Health Chair

b. Appointment of Board of Health First Vice-Chair

c. Appointment of Board of Health Second Vice-Chair

22. . Election of OfficersElection of Officers

33. . Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

55. . Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

66. . Business ArisingBusiness Arising

i. January 2018 Report

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer
Report

i. Draft Financial Statements for the Period Ending
November 30, 2017

ii. 2017 Financial Controls Checklist

iii. 2018-19 CAPS Budget

b. Financial Reporting

c. Committee Reports

ii. 2018 Workplan - Ontario Public Health Standards
Organizational Requirements

iv. 2018 Insurance Renewal Final

77. . Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

d. Call for Committee Members for the Finance & Audit
Committe and the Governance Standing Committee

a. January 24, 2018- Agenda

44. . Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

a. Safe Water and Septic Systems

a. 02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest Policy

January 24, 2018 - Board of Health Meeting BookJanuary 24, 2018 - Board of Health Meeting Book

Algoma Public Health Board of Health Meeting Table of ContentsAlgoma Public Health Board of Health Meeting Table of Contents

Page 5

Page 8

Page 43

Page 45

Page 56

Page 63

Page 72

Page 78

Page 79

Page 2 of 102



i. 2017 Finance and Audit Committe Year End
Report

a. Cannabis

i. Letter to Minister Hoskins from the Township of
Spanish

b. Expert Panel

c. Food Insecurity/Nutritious Food Basket Costing

d. Income Security

e. Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy Modernization

i. Letter to APH from Minister of Justice and
Attorney General of Canada

ii. Resolution from the Township of Dubreuilville

i. Letter to Premier Wynne from Sudbury and
District Health Unit

i. Letter to Minister Jaczek from OPHA and alPHa

99. . CorrespondenceCorrespondence

a. Adoption of In-Committee Minutes dated October 25,
2017

b. Litigation or Potential Litigation

1212. . In CommitteeIn Committee

1515. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

ii. 2017 Governance Standing Committee Year End
Report

88. . New BusinessNew Business

i. Letter to Minister Hoskins from Peterborough
Public Health

1010. . Items for InformationItems for Information

1111. . AddendumAddendum

c. Labour Relations and Employee Negotiations

1313. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1414. . Resolutions Resulting From In CommitteesResolutions Resulting From In Committees

a. Next Board of Health Meeting - Date

1616. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 81

Page 84

Page 86

Page 89

Page 90

Page 92

Page 96

Page 100

Page 3 of 102



Page 4 of 102



 

ALGOMA PUBLIC HEALTH  
BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING 
JANUARY 24, 2018 @ 5:00 PM 

SAULT STE MARIE ROOM A, SSM 
A*G*E*N*D*A  

 
1.0 Meeting Called to Order  

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
Dr. Marlene, Spruyt, 
MOH/CEO 

  

2.0 Election of Officers  
a. Appointment of Board of Health Chair 

Resolution 
THAT the Algoma Public Health Board of Health appoints 
___________________________as Chair for the year 2018. 

 

 

b. Appointment of the Board of Health First Vice-Chair 
Resolution 

THAT the Algoma Public Health Board of Health appoints 
___________________________as First Vice-Chair and Chair of the 
Finance and Audit Committee for the year 2018. 

 

Board Chair 

c. Appointment of the Board of Health Second Vice-Chair 
Resolution 
THAT the Algoma Public Health Board of Health appoints 
___________________________as Second Vice-Chair and Chair of 
the Governance Standing Committee for the year 2018. 

 

Board Chair 

d. Call for Committee Members for the Finance & Audit Committee 
and the Governance Standing Committee 

Board Chair 

  

3.0 Adoption of Agenda Items Board Chair 

Resolution 

THAT the agenda items dated January 24, 2018 be adopted as 

circulated. 

 

  
4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting  Board Chair 

Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health minutes for the meeting dated  
November 22, 2017 be adopted as circulated. 

 

  
5.0 Delegations/Presentations.  

a. Safe Water and Septic Systems Mr. Jonathon Bouma, 
Program Manager 

  

6.0 Business Arising from Minutes Board Chair 

a. 02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest Policy 
Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health approves policy 02-05-015 – Conflict of 
Interest as presented. 

 

Page 5 of 102



Agenda 
Board of Health 
January 24, 2018 
Page 2 
 

  
7.0 Reports to the Board  

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Report 
i January 2018 Report 

Resolution 
THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for the 
month of January 2018 be adopted as presented. 
ii New Ontario Public Health Standards: Organizational 

Requirements 

Dr. Marlene Spruyt 
Medical Officer of 
Health/CEO 
 

b. Financial Report   
i. Draft Financial Statements for the Period Ending  

November 30, 2017 

Resolution 
THAT the Board of health approves the Financial Statements for the 
Period Ending November 30, 2017 as presented. 

Mr. Justin Pino, CFO 

ii. 2017 Financial Controls Checklist 

Resolution 
That the Board of Health received the 2017 Financial Controls 
Checklist submission. 

Mr. Justin Pino, CFO 

iii. 2018-19 CAPS Budget 
Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health reviewed and accepts the Community 
Accountability Planning Submission (CAPS) report as presented. 

Mr. Justin Pino, CFO 

iv. 2018 Insurance Renewal  
Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health approve the renewal of the 2018 Insurance 
coverage for APH; and 
 
THAT the Board of Health provides the authority to the Finance & Audit 
Committee to commit to any incremental changes with respect to 
insurance coverage.  The Finance & Audit Committee would provide an 
update to the Board of Health of the changes at the February board 
meeting and highlight any costs associated with the changes. 

Mr. Justin Pino, CFO 

  
c. Committee Reports  

i. 2017 Finance and Audit Committee Year End Report Mr. Ian Frazier,  
Committee Chair 

ii. 2017 Governance Standing Committee Year End Report Ms. Deborah Graystone, 
Committee Chair 

Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health accepts the Finance and Audit Committee 
and Governance Standing Committee yearend report for 2017 as 
presented 

 

  

8.0 New Business/General Business  
  

  

Page 6 of 102



Agenda 
Board of Health 
January 24, 2018 
Page 3 
 

9.0 Correspondence Board Chair 

a. Cannabis 
i. Letter to APH from Minister of Justice and Attorney General of 

Canada dated December 8, 2017 

 

b. Expert Panel 
i. Letter to Minster Hoskins from the Town of Spanish dated 

December 11, 2017  
ii. Resolution from Township of Dubreuilville dated  

December 1, 2017 

 

c. Food Insecurity/Nutritious Food Basket Costing 
i. Letter to Premier Wynne from Sudbury & District Health Unit 

dated December 5, 2017 

 

d. Income Security 
i. Letter to Minister Jaczek from Ontario Public Health Association 

and the Association of Local Public Health Agencies dated  
January 5, 2018 

 

e. Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy Modernization 
i. Letter to Minster Hoskins from Peterborough Public Health dated 

November 23, 2017 

 

  
10.0 Items for Information   

  
11.0 Addendum  

  
12.0 That The Board Go Into Committee 

Resolution 

THAT the Board of Health goes into committee. 
Agenda Items: 

a. Adoption of in-committee minutes dated October 25, 2017 
b. Litigation or Potential Litigation 
c. Labour Relations and Employee Negotiations 

Board Chair 

  
13.0 That The Board Go Into Open Meeting 

Resolution 

THAT the Board of Health goes into open meeting 

Board Chair 

  

14.0 Resolution(s) Resulting from In-Committee Session Board Chair 

  
15.0 Announcements: Board Chair 

Next Board Meeting: 
February 28, 2018 at 5:00pm 
Sault Ste. Marie, Room A&B, Sault Ste. Marie 

 

  
16.0 That The Meeting Adjourn 

Resolution 
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns 

Board Chair 

 

Page 7 of 102



Jon Bouma, MSc., CPHI(C) 
Manager of Infectious Diseases 

 
January 24, 2018  

Safe Water and Septic Systems 

Page 8 of 102



District 
of 

Algoma 

Page 9 of 102



Presentation scope 

Safe Water (Ontario Public Health Standard) 

• Drinking water: 

oReg 170 vs Reg 319 systems under Safe Drinking  
Water Act 

oPrivate well water 

 

Septic systems 

 

Page 10 of 102



Influence on health 

• Waterborne 

disease from 

animal or human 

wastes 

• Blue green algae 

• Aquifer protection 

 

Page 11 of 102



1309 
The city  of London prohibits the “casting of filth from houses into the street and 

lanes of the city, 1309 

Page 12 of 102



Regulation 170 

• Regulation 170 systems are large municipal systems (such as 
Elliot Lake, Wawa and Blind River’s drinking water) that are 
regulated and inspected by the Ministry of Environment and 
Climate Change (MOECC). 

• Public health participates in individual parameters for 
response (ie.sodium and trihalomethanes (THM’s) 

• Lead in schools, lead in SSM with PUC 

• Issues Boil Water Advisories and Orders 

 

Page 13 of 102



Types of Reg 170 systems 

• Large residential 
Serve 100+ private residences. 

• Small residential 
Serve 6 to 100 private residences. 

• Large non-residential 
Supply water to designated facilities (e.g., day cares, schools, 
hospitals) at a rate greater than 2.9 litres per second. 

• Small non-residential 
Supply water to designated facilities (e.g., day cares, schools, 
hospitals) at a rate less than 2.9 litres per second. 

Page 14 of 102



Regulation 319 

• Are systems that are regulated by public 
health (as of Dec 1, 2008) 

• Require risk assessments on a determined 
frequency (RCAT- risk categorization 
assessment tool) 

 

Page 15 of 102



RCAT 

• Public health inspectors (PHI) conduct a site-specific 
risk assessment for every small drinking water 
system in Algoma 

• Based on the assessment, they will determine what 
owners and operators must do to keep their drinking 
water safe, and will issue a directive for the system.  

• The directive may include requirements for water 
testing, treatment options or training. This reflects a 
customized approach for each small drinking water 
system depending on the level of risk. 

 

Page 16 of 102



Requirements for SDWS 

• Treatment equipment 

• Testing and sampling 

• Operational Checks 

• Records 

• Operator training 

 

 

Page 17 of 102



Things that impact the risk assessment: 

 
• Water source: secure vs. insecure (e.g. drilled well or lake water, water 

tight casing, depth of well, secure well cap) 

• Ground formation around well 

• Service reservoirs (e.g. cistern) 

• Nearby sources of contamination (e.g. proximity to septic system) 

• Existing treatment  

• Area prone to seasonal flooding 

• Number of connections and size of the distribution system 

• Unprotected or protected distribution system (e.g. above ground or below 
ground) 

• Interior plumbing (e.g. lead) and age of the pipes 

• Sampling history and results 

 

Page 18 of 102



Frequency of inspection 

• High every 2 years 

• Low and medium every 4 years 

• total of 273 Rcats due every 2 or 4 years 

Page 19 of 102



Private Wells 

• Homeowners test via the Public Health Lab 

• APH responds to inquiries and adverse water 
results (such as E.coli and Total coliforms) 

Page 20 of 102



Drinking Water Wells 

Types of Wells 

• Large-Diameter Shallow Wells 

• Sand Point / Driven Wells 

• Drilled Wells 

  

Legal 

• Well construction is regulated by 
the Ministry of Environment 

• Wells must be installed by a 
licensed well driller. 

– Drillers are required to register 
the well (well log) after    
construction. 

  

Page 21 of 102



Large-Diameter Wells 
Dug Wells 

• Formerly dug by hand, most 

dug wells are created with 

excavation equipment. 

• Dug wells are usually no more 

than 9 metres (30 ft) deep. 

• During dry periods, shallow dug 

wells can have low water 

levels. 

• Because they are shallow, dug 

wells are vulnerable to 

contamination. 

  

Look for: large-diameter casing of 

60-120 cm (24-48 in). 

  

Page 22 of 102



Drilled Wells 
Look for: small-diameter casing of 

10-20 cm (4-8 in). 

  Drilled Wells 

• Drilled wells are generally the least 

vulnerable to contamination, 

assuming that they are properly built, 

sealed and maintained. 

• In Ontario, new wells must meet the 

requirements of Provincial water 

regulations. 

• Installed by a well driller. 

  

Page 23 of 102



Well (or Sand) Points 

Well (or Sand) Points 

• A small-diameter casing located in a 

shallow, sandy area may be a well  

(or sand) point. 

• Well or sand points are vulnerable to 

near-surface contamination,  and 

shortage during dry periods. 

• Can be installed by hand. 

  

Look for: small-diameter casing of 

2.5-5 cm (1-2 in). Often below grade. 

  

Page 24 of 102



Surface Water Source 
Surface Water Source 

• Can be as simple as a 1.5 in. water line 

in 1 to 3 m water depth. 

• Highly susceptible to contamination. 

• Require filtration and treatment. 

• Pending on installation they can be for 

permanent or temporary use. 

• Many seasonal cottages draw from a 

surface water source. 

• The majority of municipal systems draw 

water from a surface water source. 

• Can also be constructed as a pit. 

  

Page 25 of 102



On-site Sewage Systems  

The Board of Health is prescribed under 
Division C Section 1.7 of the Ontario Building 
Code to enforce the provisions of the Act and 
OBC related to Sewage Systems for all 
municipalities and territories without municipal 
organization located in the Algoma Health Unit. 

 

 

Page 26 of 102



What is a Sewage System? 

The OBC – Part 8 identifies the requirements for proper treatment of 
human generated sewage.  

 

A sewage system is a means to return the waste generated through black or 
grey water disposal safely back into the environment. 

  

Typical operation involves a septic tank and leaching field sized in to 
accommodate the expected maximum Daily Sewage Flow and on site soil 
drainage conditions.  

Page 27 of 102



Types of Septic Systems 

All sewage systems shall be classed as one of the following: 

(a) Class 1 — a chemical toilet, an incinerating toilet, a recirculating toilet, a 
self-contained portable toilet and all forms of privy including a portable 
privy, an earth pit privy, a pail privy, a privy vault and a composting 
toilet system, 

(b) Class 2 — a greywater system, 

(c) Class 3 — a cesspool, 

(d) Class 4 — a leaching bed system, or 

(e) Class 5 — a system that requires or uses a holding tank for the retention 
of hauled sewage at the site where it is produced prior to its collection 
by a hauled sewage system 

Page 28 of 102



Septic 

• Inspect before installation and renovations 

• No re-inspection program  
(change to OBC or  
municipal bylaw needed  
to implement)  

• Septic failure 

• complaints 

 

Page 29 of 102



Authority  

Algoma Public Health is responsible for all private sewage systems with a 
design capacity of 10,000L/day or less, that are wholly contained on an 
individual lot. 

 

Scope: All residential and most small scale commercial properties that are 
not served by municipal sewer services. 

 

All new builds not connected to city service require an approval for an on-
site sewage system from APH prior to the issuance of a structural building 
permit from a local municipality. 

 

Unorganized?  A permit and approval is still required by APH. 

Page 30 of 102



APH Role 

APH is required to Issue or Refuse an application for construction of a 
sewage system within 10 days. 

 

Applications are a standard form developed by the Ministry of Municipal 
Affairs and Housing.  

 

Applications and approvals are required for all new construction, 
renovations, additions, repairs, alterations, change of use and 
decommissions/demolitions.  

 

APH is involved in land use planning: severances, minor variances, 
subdivision, etc. 

Page 31 of 102



Flow calculations 

Daily sewage flow calculations: 

• Based on Hydraulic Loads for Number of Bedrooms 

(occupancy) and the greater of Fixtures or Floor Area 

• Other factors: 

oSoil profile type 

oSetbacks to lot lines, surface water, well, buildings 

 

 

Page 32 of 102



Setbacks 

Page 33 of 102



APH Inspection Process 

Initial Inspection:  

• Application review 

• Designed Sewage Flow validation 

• Site validation 

• Compliance validation with OBC, Act and other applicable law 
(ie. zoning bylaws, official plans, planning act, etc.) 

 

Final Inspection: 

•  Verifies construction compliance (Division B – Part 8) 

•  Verifies compliance with original application 

•  Required prior to issuance of “Occupancy Permit” by local 
 municipality.  

Page 34 of 102



Class 4 – Leaching Beds 

Page 35 of 102



Page 36 of 102



Page 37 of 102



Leaching Beds 

Page 38 of 102



Filter Beds 

Page 39 of 102



Inspection Points 

Page 40 of 102



APH Website 

 

Page 41 of 102



Page 42 of 102



Algoma Public Health – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE – Policies and Procedures Manual 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 

    

DATE: O: January 18, 1995 SECTION: Board 

 Revised:  October 28, 2015   

 Revised: September 27, 2017   

    

PAGE: 1 of 2 SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest 

    

POLICY: 

Each member of the Board of Health has the obligation to avoid ethical, legal, financial or other conflicts of 
interest and to ensure that their activities and interests do not conflict with their obligations to the Board of 
Health of the Algoma District Health Unit (operating as Algoma Public Health) or its welfare. 

It is the responsibility of the individual to disclose any conflicts of interest to the meeting  

If there is any doubt as to a perception of conflict the member shall discuss with the chair and/or  Board of 
Health for direction. 

A board member should not use information that is not public knowledge, obtained as a result of his or her 
appointment, for personal benefit. 

No board member should divulge confidential information obtained as a result of his or her appointment 
unless legally required to do so. 

A Board member shall remove oneself from the Board of Health if Employment at APH is being sought. 

The purpose of the Conflict of Interest Policy is to: 

i) assist individual board members in determining when his or her participation on a board 
decision/discussion has the potential to be used for personal or private benefit, financial or 
otherwise;  

ii) protect the integrity of the Board as a whole and its members by following the conflict of Interest 
Policy and Procedures 
 

Definitions: A conflict of interest situation arises where a member either on his/her own behalf or 
while acting for, by, with or through another, has any direct or indirect non-pecuniary or pecuniary 
interest in any contract or transaction with the Board or in any contract or transaction that is 
reasonably likely to be affected by a decision of the Board. 
Where the board member or their close relative or friend or affiliated entity uses the board member’s 
position with the APHU to advance their personal or financial interests; 

Actual conflict of interest: a situation where a board member has a private or personal interest that is 
sufficiently connected to his or her duties and responsibilities as a board member that it influences the 
exercise of these duties and responsibilities 
 
Perceived conflict of interest: a situation where reasonably well-informed persons could  have a 
reasonable belief that a board member may have an actual conflict even where that is not the case in fact 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 102



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 

PROCEDURE: 
 
1) At the beginning of every Board meeting, the Board Chair shall ask and have recorded in the minutes 

whether any board member has a conflict to declare in respect to any agenda item. 
 
2)  If a board member believes that he or she has an actual conflict of interest in a particular matter, he or she 

shall, 
 

(a) prior to any consideration of the matter, declare to the Chair of the Board or the Chair of the 
relevant Committee  that he or she has a conflict of interest that prevents him or her from 
participating;  

 
(b) not take part in the discussion of or vote on any question in respect of the matter; 

 
(c) leave for the portion of the meeting related to the matter; and   

 
(d) not attempt in any way to influence the voting or do anything which might be reasonably 

perceived as an attempt to influence other councillors or committee members or the decision 
relating to that matter. 

 

3) Should the Board be in an in-camera session the board member shall leave the room until the agenda 
item has been decided. 

 
4) In situations where a board member declares a perceived conflict of interest the Board will determine 

by majority vote whether the member(s) participate in the discussion and vote on the item. The minutes 
should reflect the discussion and the Board decision on the matter. Alternately the board member may 
decide on his or her own accord to not participate in the discussion and to not vote on the agenda  item in 
question. 

 
5) Prior to seeking employment with programs administered by the Board the member shall provide a letter 

of resignation; however, the member may seek re-appointment if not successful in the job competition. 
 
Where a conflict of interest is discovered during or after consideration of a matter it is to be declared to the 
Board at the earliest opportunity and recorded in the minutes. If the board determines that the involvement of 
the member declaring the conflict influenced the decision on the matter, the Board shall re-examine the 
matter and may rescind, vary, or confirm its decision. Any action taken by the Board shall be recorded in the 
minutes 
 
Where there has been a failure on the part of a Board member to comply with this policy, unless the failure is 
the result of a bona fide error in judgement as determined by the Board, the Board shall request that the 
Chair, : 

i) Issue a verbal reprimand ; or 
ii) Issue a written reprimand; or  
iii) Request that the Board member resign or 

Seek dismissal of the Board member based on regulations relevant as to how the board member \ was 
appointed. 

Page 44 of 102



 
 
 
 

MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 24, 2018 
 

Prepared by: Dr. Marlene Spruyt, Medical Officer of Health/CEO 
 

and the Leadership Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On Friday January 5th, 2018 APH Parent Child Services staff participated in a 

Superhero Party at the Canadian Bush Plane Heritage Centre hosted by Child 

Care Algoma and supported by many community partners. Parent Child 

Services were highlighted as part of this event and families had an opportunity 

to talk with public health nurses and a dental health educator about nutrition, 

physical activity, and oral health. Approximately 425 children and families 

attended the event. 

Page 45 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 2 of 11 
 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
  

APH At-a-Glance Page 3 

Program Highlights Page 4-10 

Appendix Page 11 

 
 
  

Page 46 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 3 of 11 
 

 3 

 

Although somewhat belated….Happy New Year greetings to all,  
 
It’s been a busy month….as we begin implementation of the new Ontario Public Health Standards and the 
associated organization restructuring to support this work. Change is often difficult for staff and we are 
doing what we can to minimize the impacts to our employees. We will be implementing in a phased in 
approach and HR is available to all staff to support individuals and answer their questions. 
 
The Board of Health approved its 2018 Public Health Operating and Capital Budget at its November 2017 

Board meeting.  In 2018, the Ministry has introduced a new budgeting tool called the Annual Service 

Plan(ASP), designed to link program and service plans to the operating budget.  The ASP  is built around 

the new Ontario Public Health Standards.  Therefore, our Finance Team has done considerable work 

already creating a new chart of accounts to meet these requirements.  

As part of the new standards implementation you will see along with this monthly program report a 
review of the new Organizational Requirements for Boards of Health. We have gone through the 
document and identified areas where we are currently in compliance and those where we still need to do 
some work. 
 
In this time of fiscal restraint we are always looking for ways to improve our efficiency and reduce costs. 
One such project in the early exploration phase is assessing if there are areas where regional cost sharing 
might bring added value, expertise and revenue saving to the involved health units. Along with NE 
partners we have submitted a request for one-time funding to organize a thorough and objective review. 
 
During 2018 we are celebrating 50 years of public health services in the District of Algoma. Prior to 1968 
public health was essentially a municipal responsibility and municipalities made individual arrangements 
for Medical Officer of Health services (which were often only temporary during an outbreak). During the 
1960’s and 1970’s the work of public health changed from that focused primarily on the prevention of 
infectious disease. With increased availability of a number of immunizations outbreaks of diseases such as 
polio, measles and pertussis diminished. Attention to clean water and sanitary services greatly reduced 
typhoid and salmonella cases and public health work expanded to include prevention of chronic diseases. 
This required more long term planning and public health interventions could not just be turned on during 
an outbreak. Larger communities were the first to implement permanent full time public health 
departments and in Algoma 1968 marked the year where the SSM Board of Health expanded its mandate 
to provide services to almost all of the district (Elliot Lake did not join until 1978) and was approved by the 
province to be a district Board of Health. There will be activities and events throughout the year and 
throughout the district in celebration of our “golden” anniversary. Free skating was provided in SSM on 
January 20th and other events will be shared with you as the arrangements fall into place. 
 
 
 
 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 47 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 4 of 11 
 

 4 

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 
 

HARM REDUCTION AND LOCAL RESPONSE TO OPIOIDS 
Submitted by: Jennifer Loo, Associate Medical Officer of Health 
 
Public Health Goal: To reduce the burden of preventable injuries and substance use 
 
Program Standard Requirements addressed in this report: 

 The board of health shall collect and analyze relevant data to monitor trends over time, emerging 
trends, priorities, and health inequities related to injuries and substance use and report and 
disseminate the data and information in accordance with the Population Health Assessment and 
Surveillance Protocol, 2018 (or as current). 

 The board of health shall develop and implement a program of public health interventions using a 
comprehensive health promotion approach that addresses risk and protective factors to reduce 
the burden of preventable injuries and substance use in the health unit population. 

 
2015-2020 Strategic Priorities addressed in this report: 

 Improve Health Equity 

 Collaborate Effectively 
 
Key Messages 

 Algoma rates of opioid-related emergency department visits, hospitalizations, and deaths are 
higher than the average rates for Ontario, and a substantial proportion of Algoma residents are at 
risk for opioid-related harms due to either prescribed opioid use or illicit substance use. 

 In accordance with ongoing MOHLTC direction related to its Harm Reduction Program 
Enhancement funding, APH is expanding the distribution of naloxone to community agencies, 
engaging first responders in opioid overdose early warning and surveillance, and developing a 
communications strategy aimed at harm reduction, prevention and stigma reduction. 

 
Introduction 
Opioids are a class of substances which are prescribed for pain control (e.g. codeine, morphine), for the 
treatment of opioid addiction (e.g. methadone) and also used recreationally (e.g. heroin, street fentanyl).  
In Ontario, rising morbidity and mortality due to opioid overdose has resulted in multiple responses from 
the provincial government, including new Harm Reduction Program Enhancement (HRPE) funding from 
the MOHLTC.  Harm reduction – “meeting people where they are at” and reducing the harms of a 
behavior without changing the behavior itself – is a key pillar of a comprehensive public health approach 
to substance use and misuse.  Through the HRPE, public health units are mandated to 

 facilitate the expansion of naloxone distribution (an “antidote” medication which can temporarily 
reverse opioid overdose) 

 conduct local surveillance for opioid overdose, and  

 engage in a local opioid response that may include education and prevention initiatives. 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 5 

Opioid-related health harms in Algoma 
As illustrated in the graph below, opioid-related mortality in Algoma is higher than the average for 
Ontario, with young, working-age men particularly affected.  Opioid-related emergency department visits 
and hospitalizations are also higher in Algoma, compared to the provincial average (National Ambulatory 
Care Reporting System, 2016). 
 

 
 

Of note, a significant proportion of Algoma residents are at risk for opioid-related harms due to either 
prescribed opioid use or illicit substance use.  In 2016, one in six Algoma residents was prescribed an 
opioid, compared to one in seven in Ontario (Ontario Drug Policy Research Network, 2016).  
Recreational substance use is also common.  Based on previous cycles of the Canadian Community 
Health Survey, 14.8% of Algoma residents reported using an illicit drug in the previous 12 months (ON 
= 13%), while 50.2% of Algoma residents reported ever using an illicit drug (ON = 40.6%).   
 
  

Page 49 of 102

http://odprn.ca/research/publications/opioid-prescribing-in-ontario-august-2017/


Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 6 of 11 
 

 6 

APH Local Response to Opioids 
 
Naloxone Distribution Expansion 
The distribution of naloxone to people who use drugs is a vital component of ongoing harm reduction 
efforts to prevent opioid overdose deaths.  Currently, in the District of Algoma, injectable naloxone 
kits are distributed free of charge to anyone with an OHIP card at participating pharmacies.  Nasal 
spray naloxone kits are also distributed through the Group Health Centre Hep Care Program, and by 
APH at all district offices, with a focus on clients at high risk of overdose, without a need for an OHIP 
card.   
 
In early 2018, APH is expanding the distribution of nasal spray naloxone kits to key community 
organizations that provide services to priority populations at risk of overdose.   APH is supporting the 
readiness of community partners to engage in naloxone distribution work, by facilitating the 
development of agency policies and procedures, and ensuring that local needs for training and 
inventory management will be met.   
 
Opioid overdose early warning and surveillance 
In collaboration with representatives from Sault Ste. Marie police services, Sault Ste. Marie EMS, the 
Sault Area Hospital emergency department, and the Sault Ste. Marie drug strategy, APH is conducting 
local epidemiologic surveillance and disseminating a monthly bulletin on opioid overdose in Algoma.  
The December 2017 bulletin is appended to the end of this report.  The current system is capable of 
capturing “spikes” in local overdoses, thereby facilitating the timely sharing of information among 
first responders, and the coordination of local interventions.  In early 2018, APH is reaching out to 
first responders throughout the district in order to extend surveillance activity across Algoma. 
 
Harm reduction, prevention, and stigma reduction 
APH is currently developing a communications strategy to address harm reduction, prevention, and 
stigma reduction related to opioids in multiple settings in Algoma communities.  Given that a 
significant proportion of Algoma residents are at risk of opioid-related harms from recreational drug 
use or prescribed opioid use, harm reduction messages will aim to encourage individuals to recognize 
their risks and use in lower risk ways (e.g. “carry naloxone” or “don’t use alone”).  Prevention 
messages will also emphasize stigma reduction.   
 
Next Steps 
APH will continue to optimize its opioid surveillance and naloxone distribution efforts by soliciting 
ongoing feedback from community partners during the expansion of this work.  As more precise and 
up-to-date data becomes available on opioid-related morbidity and mortality in Ontario, this 
information will further inform the APH communications strategy and harm reduction programming.   

 
 

  

Page 50 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 7 of 11 
 

 7 

NORTHERN FRUIT AND VEGETABLE PROGRAM (NFVP) 
Submitted by: Kristy Harper, Program Manager of Chronic Disease Prevention 
 Laurie Zeppa, Director of Health Promotion and Prevention 
 
Public Health Goal: 
 
Chronic Disease Prevention & Well-Being Goal:  To reduce the burden of chronic diseases and public 
health importance and improve well-being. 
 
School Health Goal:  To achieve optimal health of school-aged children and youth through partnership 
and collaboration with school boards and schools. 
 
Northern Fruit and Vegetable Program Goals:  To increase the amount of vegetables and fruit eaten by 
elementary school-aged children as well as promote Ontario-grown produce and provide education about 
the importance of healthy eating and physical activity for overall health. 
 
Program Funder:  Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care (MOHLTC) 
 *The NFVP is currently funded and implemented in Porcupine Health Unit, Sudbury District Health Unit 
and Algoma Public Health, with anticipated expansion to all Northern Health Units in 2018.   
 
Program Partners:  MOHLTC, Ontario Fruit and Vegetable Growers Association, Massey Wholesale, 
Algoma District School Board, Huron Superior Catholic District School Board, Conseil Scolaire Catholique 
du Nouvel-Ontario and Conseil Scolaire Public du Grand-Nord de L’Ontario. 
 
 
Program Standard Requirements addressed in this report: 
 
School Health: 

1. The board of health shall collect and analyze relevant data to monitor trends over time, emerging 
trends, priorities, and health of school-aged children and youth and report and disseminate the 
data and information. 

2. The board of health shall develop and implement a program of public health interventions using a 
comprehensive health promotion approach to improve the health of school-aged children and youth. 

3. The board of health shall offer support to school boards and schools to assist with the 
implementation of health-related curricula and health needs in schools, based on need and 
considering, but not limited to: 

a. Healthy eating behaviours and food safety 
b. Mental health promotion 
c. Physical activity and sedentary behaviour 

 
 
2015-2020 Strategic Priorities addressed in this report: 

 Improve Health Equity 

 Collaborate Effectively 

Page 51 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 8 of 11 
 

 8 

Key Messages  

 According to 2013/2014 Canadian Community Health Survey (CCHS) data, only 29.6% of Algoma 
residents consume 5 or more servings of vegetables and fruit per day.   

 Data from the 2016 Northern Fruit and Vegetable (NFVP) evaluation indicates that 84% of the 
children and youth respondents are not consuming the recommended number of vegetable and 
fruit servings from Canada’s Food Guide.  

 From 2014-2016 the percentage of participants consuming fruit ≥ 5 times per week, as well as the 
percentage of participants consuming fruit never or less than once/month improved, while 
vegetable consumption remained constant. 

 NFVP aims to increase the amount of vegetables and fruit eaten by elementary school-aged 
children by providing all children the opportunity to try vegetables and fruit amongst the comfort 
of peers.   

 
 
Introduction 
 
Healthy Eating:  Health Canada states that healthy eating means eating a variety of foods from the four 
food groups in Canada’s Food Guide to feel good and maintain health.  Healthy eating along with physical 
activity can also lower risk of disease and support mental wellness. 
 
Food Literacy:  Food literacy is a set of interconnected attributes organized into the categories of food 
and nutrition knowledge, skills, self-efficacy/confidence, food decisions, and other ecologic (external) 
factors such as income security, and the food system. 
 
Wellness:  The World Health Organization defines health as a state of complete physical, mental and 
social well-being and not merely the absence of disease. Mental health is defined as a state of well-being 
in which every individual realizes his or her own potential, can cope with the normal stresses of life, can 
work productively and fruitfully, and is able to make a contribution to her or his community. 
 
The relationship between food and mental health outcomes is likely bi-directional, where poor mental 
health outcomes may result in poor food choices, emotional eating, appetite changes, skipping meals, a 
preference for energy-dense food and a tendency to consume easy to prepare food.  However, research is 
also showing that a healthy diet can reduce depression and anxiety and promote positive mental health.  
A high intake of vegetables and fruit has been shown to improve mood and may be protective against 
mental health problems. 
 
 
Population Health Snapshot 
Approximately 30% of Ontario children and youth are overweight or obese.  The issue is more severe for 
boys than girls and for Indigenous children. Children and youth who are overweight and obese are at 
increased risk of remaining obese throughout adulthood.  They are also at present and future risk of 
adverse health consequences including cardiovascular disease, type 2 diabetes and many cancers.  
Overweight and obese children and youth are also more likely to have a reduced quality of life and are at 
a greater risk of being teased, bullied and socially isolated. 

Page 52 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 9 

From current NFVP evaluation data, we know that 84% of the children and youth respondents are not 
consuming the recommended number of vegetable and fruit servings from Canada’s Food Guide. Healthy 
eating behaviours that include adequate vegetable and fruit consumption can help to prevent chronic 
diseases such as heart disease, type 2 diabetes and cancer. 
 
2013/2014 CCHS data also tells us that low vegetable and fruit consumptions is evident in adulthood as 
well, with only 29.6% of Algoma residents consuming 5 or more vegetables and fruit per day.  
 
In addition to what we know about eating behaviours, our NFVP evaluation data also tells us that less 
than half (38%) of the children and youth respondents reported meeting Canada’s Physical Activity 
Guidelines on all 7 days of the week. 
 
 
Algoma Public Health Program or Intervention 
We know that children eat more vegetables and fruit where they live, learn and play (e.g. school), when 
they are promoted, available, accessible and affordable. This makes the NFVP an ideal program to provide 
the opportunity to increase vegetable and fruit consumption, as it promotes and provides free vegetables 
and fruit to all elementary students throughout Algoma. 
 
Algoma Public Health (APH) is entering its eleventh year of implementation of the NFVP, providing at least 
two servings of vegetables and fruit per week (from January to June) to over 10,000 elementary students 
across the district of Algoma. The program aims to increase the amount of vegetables and fruit eaten by 
elementary school-aged children and provides all children the opportunity to try new foods amongst the 
comfort of peers. The program strives to promote Ontario-grown produce and provide education to 
students and their families about the importance of healthy eating and physical activity for overall health 
and well-being. In addition, the NFVP can provide: 

 Hands-on education for important life skills (e.g., food safety and food preparation) 

 Opportunities for student leadership 

 Ability to practice numeracy and literacy outside of the traditional classroom setting  

 Motivation to create healthy school nutrition environments, where schools not only teach healthy 
eating in the classroom, but students are able to practice healthy eating habits within their school 
environment 

 
APH coordinates program implementation by distributing and collecting application forms, managing 
program issues, providing funding to the school boards allotted for individual school implementation, as 
well as developing and sharing promotional and educational interventions and materials related to 
vegetable and fruit consumption and physical activity. The Ontario Fruit and Vegetable Growers 
Association manage the sourcing of the Ontario-grown produce and coordinates deliveries, with Massey 
Wholesale making the deliveries to each school. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53 of 102



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 10 

Evaluation  
Since 2014, participating Health Units have been working with Dr. Sarah Woodruff from the University of 
Windsor on the evaluation of the program. From 2014-2016 the percentage of participants consuming 
fruit ≥ 5 times per week, as well as the percentage of participants consuming fruit never or less than once 
per month improved, while vegetable consumption remained constant.  In 2014 the percentage of 
students who consumed fruit ≥ 5 times per week was 49%. In 2016 this number increased to 55%. 
Evaluation of the program will continue in partnership with Dr. Woodruff.  
 
 
Next Steps 
APH began implementation of this year’s Northern Fruit and Vegetable Program on January 8, 2018. In 
addition to continuing with the evaluation in partnership with the University of Windsor, APH has planned 
some unique initiatives to support the program. Parent outreach will occur with the distribution of 
program menus for each family, and included on these menus is new information highlighting the 
importance of family meals and providing some tips for families. Curriculum support will be provided to 
grade 3 teachers with the purchase and distribution of “See What We Eat!” books and the promotion of 
appropriate provincial lesson plans that support the education of where food comes from. Program 
aprons have also been purchased for use by the food handlers at each school to increase program 
visibility and promotion throughout the school community. APH is looking forward to another successful 
year of implementation, as are the schools.  “Looking forward to the fabulous program” (Vice-Principal, 
Algoma) 
 
 
References 
1. Algoma Public Health & University of Windsor, Northern Fruit and Vegetable Program Evaluation Reports, 

2013-2016. 
2. Canadian Community Health Survey, 2013/2014. 
3. Health Canada, Health Eating: https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/tips-healthy-

eating/what-is-healthy-eating.html, accessed December 2017. 
4. Healthy Kids Panel Report; No Time to Wait, March 2013:  

http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/common/ministry/publications/reports/healthy_kids/healthy_kids.pdf  
5. Ontario Society of Nutrition Professionals in Public Health, Food Literacy: https://www.odph.ca/food-

literacy-1, accessed December 2017 
6. Statistics Canada, Canadian Health Measures Survey: https://www.statcan.gc.ca/pub/82-003-

x/2012003/article/11706-eng.htm  
7. Shifting Gears Report, January 2014:  

http://chd.region.waterloo.on.ca/en/researchResourcesPublications/resources/ShiftingGears_Report.pdf  
8. World Health Organization: http://www.who.int/features/factfiles/mental_health/en/,  

accessed December 2017. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Dr. Marlene Spruyt 
  

Page 54 of 102

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/tips-healthy-eating/what-is-healthy-eating.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/tips-healthy-eating/what-is-healthy-eating.html
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/common/ministry/publications/reports/healthy_kids/healthy_kids.pdf
https://www.odph.ca/food-literacy-1
https://www.odph.ca/food-literacy-1
https://www.statcan.gc.ca/pub/82-003-x/2012003/article/11706-eng.htm
https://www.statcan.gc.ca/pub/82-003-x/2012003/article/11706-eng.htm
http://chd.region.waterloo.on.ca/en/researchResourcesPublications/resources/ShiftingGears_Report.pdf
http://www.who.int/features/factfiles/mental_health/en/


Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
January 24, 2018 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 11 

Appendix  
 

 
 

Page 55 of 102



2018 Workplan - Ontario Public Health Standards: Organizational Requirements 

DELIVERY OF PROGRAMS AND SERVICES DOMAIN    

REQUIREMENT RESPONSIBILITY TIME LINE COMMENT 

1) Deliver programs and services in compliance with the Foundational and 
Program Standards  

Program 
Director and 
AMOH 

Begin 
implementation 
in January 2018 

See revised org  chart 
All new job postings amended to include 
new standards language 

2) Comply with programs provided for in the Health Protection and Promotion 
Act 

MOH Ongoing Prevention, protection and promotion 
activities of HPPA are embedded into 
new OPHSPS 

3) Undertake population health assessments including identification of 
priority populations, social determinants of health and health inequities, 
and measure and report on them  

AMOH & FASS 
team 

Ongoing 
 
Q4 

Some work done within program. More 
support for this work through FASS  
Complete updated Community Profile 

4) Describe the program of public health interventions and the information 
used to inform them including how health inequities will be addressed 

Program 
director and 
Program 
manager 

Ongoing annually in program planning process 
and Annual Service Plan submitted to 
Ministry 

5) Publicly disclose results of all inspections or other required information in 
accordance with the Foundational and Program Standards  

MOH and 
communications 
and inspection 
services 

Timing various 
 
 
Q4 

Currently only Food premises and IPAC 
breaches. Reconfiguration of website 
may be necessary 
 

6) Prepare for emergencies to ensure 24/7 timely, integrated, safe, and 
effective response to, and recovery from emergencies with public health 
impacts, in accordance with ministry policy and guidelines  

AMOH & 
Executive 

Q2 New plan underway for completion in 
early 2018 

7) Collect and analyze relevant data to monitor trends over time, emerging 
trends, priorities, and health inequities, and report and disseminate the 
data and information in accordance with the Foundational and Program 
Standards  

AMOH & FASST Ongoing  

8) Shall have a strategic plan that establishes strategic priorities over 3 to 5 
years, includes input from staff, clients, and community partners, and is 
reviewed at least every other year  

BoH & Executive Currently in 
place 2015-
2020 

Begin planning process for updating 
current plan in 2018 
Begin to develop new plan in 2019- will 
require budget $$ 

  

Page 56 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 2 of 7 

FIDUCIARY REQUIREMENTS DOMAIN    

REQUIREMENT RESPONSIBILITY TIME LINE COMMENT 

1) Comply with the terms and conditions of the Ministry-Board of Health 
Accountability Agreement  

MOH Annual reports Currently in compliance 

2) Provide costing information by program Finance Monthly In transition 

3) Submit budget submissions, quarterly financial reports, annual settlement 
reports, and other financial reports as requested 

Finance quarterly In place 
 

4) Place the grant provided by the ministry in an interest bearing account at a 
Canadian financial institution and report interest earned to the ministry if 
the ministry provides the grant to boards of health prior to their immediate 
need for the grant 

Finance Current In place 

5) Report all revenues it collects for programs or services in accordance with 
the direction provided in writing by the ministry 

Finance Monthly In place 

6) Report any part of the grant that has not been used or accounted for in a 
manner requested by the ministry 

Finance As needed  In place.No further changes 

7) Repay ministry funding as requested by the ministry Finance As needed   

8) Ensure that expenditure forecasts are as accurate as possible Finance As needed   

9) Keep a record of financial affairs, invoices, receipts and other documents, 
and shall prepare annual statements of their financial affairs 

Finance As needed  7 year retention in place 

10) Comply with the financial requirements of the Health Protection and 
Promotion Act (e.g., remuneration, informing municipalities of financial 
obligations, passing by-laws, etc.), and all other applicable legislation and 
regulations 

Finance and 
BoH 

Annual  
 

In place 

11) Use the grant only for the purposes of the Health Protection and 
Promotion Act and to provide or ensure the provision of programs and 
services in accordance with the Health Protection and Promotion Act, 
Foundational and Program Standards, and Ministry-Board of Health 
Accountability Agreement 

MOH Review 
annually 

Some blurring of activities between 
programs that are funded differently eg 
CADAP and Harm Reduction. Work 
underway to develop formulas and track 
this type of work 

12) Spend the grant only on admissible expenditures Finance Ongoing Review regularly 

13) Comply with the Municipal Act, 2001 which requires that boards of health 
ensure that the administration adopts policies with respect to its 
procurement of goods and services. All procurement of goods and services 
should normally be through an open and competitive process 

BoH  In place 
 

Reviewed every 2 years  
02-04-030 - Procurement Policy  

14) Ensure that the administration implements appropriate financial 
management and oversight which ensures the following are in place: 

   

a) A plan for the management of physical and financial resources; Finance  Bylaw 95-2 – To Provide for Banking and 
Finance 

Page 57 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 3 of 7 

Bylaw 15-01 – To Provide for the 
Management of Property 

b) A process for internal financial controls which is based on generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

Finance  Annual Ministry attestation 

c) A process to ensure that areas of variance are addressed and 
corrected; 

Finance Monthly BoH Report 

 
d) A procedure to ensure that the procurement policy is followed 

across all programs/services areas; 

Finance  02-04-030 - Procurement Policy 

e) A process to ensure the regular evaluation of the quality of service 
provided by contracted services in accordance with contract 
standards; and 

Finance Underway- Q2 Policy being developed. 

f) A process to inform the board of health regarding resource 
allocation plans and decisions, both financial and workforce 
related, that are required to address shifts in need and capacity. 

MOH 
Finance/Acct 

 When needed; currently reallocating 
resources to meet requirements of new 
standards 

15) Negotiate service level agreements for corporately provided services Finance & 
BOH Finance 
and Audit 
Comm (F&A) 

Ongoing – 
when contract 
comes up for 
renewal 

Ongoing. 3-5yrs terms for current service 
agreements 
  

16) Have and maintain insurance F&A annual  

17) Maintain an inventory of all tangible capital assets developed or acquired 
with a value exceeding $5,000 or a value determined locally that is 
appropriate under the circumstances. 

CFO  Asset tags 
Inventory tagged  all purchased IT assets    

18) Not dispose of an asset which exceeds $100,000 in value without the 
ministry's prior written confirmation. 

BoH Ongoing Rare occurence 

19) Not carry over the grant from one year to the next, unless pre-authorized 
in writing by the ministry. 

Finance Annual 
assessment 

Ministry automatically claws back 
unspent funds  

20) Maintain a capital funding plan, which includes policies and procedures to 
ensure that funding for capital projects is appropriately managed and 
reported. 

Finance Awaiting 
assessment 

Underway pending reassessment 

21) Comply with the Community Health Capital Programs policy. Finance/BoH As needed Only applies to capital building 
development 

  

Page 58 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 4 of 7 

GOOD GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES DOMAIN    

REQUIREMENT RESPONSIBILITY TIME LINE COMMENT 

1) Submit a list of board members. BoH Annual Annual service plan 

2) Operate in a transparent and accountable manner, and provide accurate 
and complete information to the ministry. 

MOH & 
Executive 

As needed  

3) Ensure that members are aware of their roles and responsibilities and 
emerging issues and trends by ensuring the development and 
implementation of a comprehensive orientation plan for new board 
members and a continuing education program for board members. 

BoH – 
Governance 

Monthly 
meeting 
education and 
orientation 
sessions as 
needed 

 

4) Carry out its obligations without a conflict of interest and shall disclose to 
the ministry an actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest. 

BoH Policy in place 02-05-015 – Conflict of Interest Policy 
Reviewed every 2 years 

5) Comply with the governance requirements of the Health Protection and 
Promotion Act (e.g., number of members, election of chair, remuneration, 
quorum, passing by-laws, etc.), and all other applicable legislation and 
regulations. 

BoH – 
Governance 

Bylaw in place Bylaw 95-1 – To Regulate the Proceeding 
of the Board of Health 
Reviewed every 2 years 

6) Comply with the medical officer of health appointments requirements of 
the Health Protection and Promotion Act, and the ministry’s policy 
framework on medical officer of health appointments, reporting, and 
compensation. 

BoH In place Only required when new appointment 

7) Ensure that the administration establishes a human resources strategy, 
which considers the competencies, composition and size of the workforce, 
as well as community composition, and includes initiatives for the 
recruitment, retention, professional development, and leadership 
development of the public health unit workforce. 

BoH & 
Antoniette 

In place HR operational plan 

8) Ensure that the administration establishes and implements written human 
resource policies and procedures which are made available to staff, 
students, and volunteers. All policies and procedures shall be regularly 
reviewed and revised, and include the date of the last review/revision. 

HR Ongoing All policies reviewed every 2 years – and 
with legislative changes 

9) Engage in community and multi-sectoral collaboration with LHINs and 
other relevant stakeholders in decreasing health inequities. 

BoH/MOH Initiated 
process  

Bi-annual meet LHIN  CEO & NE MOH 

10) Engage in relationships with Indigenous communities in a way that is 
meaningful for them. 

BoH/MOH Q2 
Ongoing  

Activities underway  wrt TRC 

11) Provide population health information, including social determinants of 
health and health inequities, to the public, community partners, LHINs, and 
health care providers in accordance with the Foundational and Program 

MH/AMOH Ongoing-Q4 New FASS team to develop set of 
indicators 
May need additional resource allocation 

Page 59 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 5 of 7 

Standards. 

12) Develop and implement policies or by-laws regarding the functioning of the 
governing body, including: 

BoH  
Governance 

  
 

a) Use and establishment of sub-committees;    
b) Rules of order and frequency of meetings;   Bylaw 95-1 – To Regulate the  

Proceedings of the Board of Health 
c) Preparation of meeting agenda, materials, minutes, and other 

record keeping; 
  02-05-010 – Board Minutes  

02-05-070 – In Committee Material 

d) Selection of officers;   02-05-075 – Election of Chair, vice Chair 
or Committee members 

e) Selection of board of health members based on skills, knowledge, 
competencies and representatives of the community, where 
boards of health are able to recommend the recruitment of 
members to the appointing body; 

   
Consider amendment of current policy 
 

f) Remuneration and allowable expenses for board members;   02-05-025 – Board Member 
Remuneration Policy 

g) Procurement of external advisors to the board such as lawyers and 
auditors (if applicable); 

  Bylaw 95-3 – To Provide for the Duties of 
the Auditor of the Board 

h) Conflict of interest;   02-05-015 – Conflict of Interest 

i) Confidentiality;    
j) Medical officer of health and executive officers (where applicable) 

selection process, remuneration, and performance review; and 
   

k) Delegation of the medical officer of health duties during short 
absences such as during a vacation/coverage plan.  

 Q1 Board resolution 2015-37- needs review 

13) Ensure that by-laws, policies and procedures are reviewed and revised as 
necessary, and at least every two years. 

EA to BOH Ongoing  Calendar in place 

14) Provide governance direction to the administration and ensure that the 
board of health remains informed about the activities of the organization 
on the following: 

a) Delivery of programs and services; 
b) Organizational effectiveness through evaluation of the organization 

and strategic planning; 
c) Stakeholder relations and partnership building; 
d) Research and evaluation; 
e) Compliance with all applicable legislation and regulations; 
f) Workforce issues, including recruitment of medical officer of health 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e/f  

Monthly report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Monthly report 
 

 

Page 60 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 6 of 7 

and any other senior executives; 
g) Financial management, including procurement policies and 

practices; and 
h) Risk management. 

 
Annually as 
needed 

15) Have a self-evaluation process of its governance practices and outcomes 
that is completed at least every other year. Completion includes an analysis 
of the results, board of health discussion, and implementation of feasible 
recommendations for improvement, if any. 

BoH Q 2 years Monthly meeting evaluation- ? annual 
review 

16) Ensure the administration develops and implements a set of client service 
standards. 

Executive In strategic plan outstanding 

17) Ensure that the medical officer of health, as the designated health 
information custodian, maintains information systems and implements 
policies/procedures for privacy and security, data collection and records 
management 

MOH & privacy 
officer 

ongoing Finalizing updated privacy audit Q6 
months 

  

Page 61 of 102



 
Ontario Public Health Standards: Requirements for Strengthened Accountability Page 7 of 7 

PUBLIC HEALTH PRACTICE DOMAIN    

REQUIREMENT RESPONSIBILITY TIME LINE COMMENT 

1) Ensure that the administration establishes, maintains, and implements 
policies and procedures related to research ethics. 

MOH In place Currently being reviewed by FASS team 

2) Designate a Chief Nursing Officer. MOH In place CNO and Nursing practice lead 

3) Demonstrate the use of a systematic process to plan public health 
programs and services to assess and report on the health of local 
populations describing the existence and impact of health inequities and 
identifying effective local strategies to decrease health inequities. 

Program 
Directors & 
AMOH 

Continued 
developpment  

Underway 
Need to build capacity ++ 

4) Employ qualified public health professionals in accordance with the 
Qualifications for Public Health Professionals Protocol, 2018 (or as current). 

MOH/HR In place Renew new regulations  
Awaiting protocols 

5) Support a culture of excellence in professional practice and ensure a 
culture of quality and continuous organizational self-improvement. This 
may include: 

a) Measurement of client, community, and stakeholder/partner 
experience to inform transparency and accountability; and 

b) Regular review of outcome data that includes variances from 
performance expectations and implementation of remediation 
plans 

QIP – measure 
          Culture 
          Outcomes 

Ongoing Work underway 
 
Documentation audit  
Privacy audit 
Good ideas 

    

COMMON TO ALL DOMAINS    

REQUIREMENT RESPONSIBILITY TIME LINE COMMENT 

1) Submit an Annual Service Plan and Budget Submission to include all 
programs and services delivered by boards of health and program costing 
for ministry-funded programs. 

Finance & 
Program 
Directors 

Annual New process 
Finance working with program managers 

2) Submit action plans as requested to address any compliance or 
performance issues. 

MOH When required  

3) Submit all reports as requested by the ministry. MOH When required  

4) Have a formal risk management framework in place that identifies, 
assesses, and addresses risks. 

MOH/BoH In place Renew annual 

5) Produce an annual financial and performance report to the general public. Finance In place  Audited statements posted to website 

6) Comply with all legal and statutory requirements. MOH/ Exec ongoing  

 

Page 62 of 102



Page 63 of 102



Page 64 of 102



Page 65 of 102



Page 66 of 102



Page 67 of 102



Page 68 of 102



Page 69 of 102



Page 70 of 102



Page 71 of 102



1 
 

Financial Controls Checklist 

Board of Health: Board of Health for the District of Algoma Health Unit Period ended: Dec. 31/17 

 

Objective: 

 The objective of the Financial Controls Checklist is to provide the Board of Health and the Public Health Unit with a tool for evaluating 
financial controls while also promoting effective and efficient business practices. 

Responsibilities: 

 This checklist is for the management of the public health unit to document that controls have been implemented.  The controls listed in the 
checklist are not meant to be exhaustive.  Management of the public health unit should outline other key controls in place for achieving the 
control objectives.  One must note that no effective financial control is achieved by signing the checklist.  The control is achieved through 
carrying out the key controls themselves. 

 The following table outlines the responsibilities for completing and using this Financial Controls Checklist. 

Description of Responsibilities Board of Health Management of the Public Health Unit 

 Completion of Financial Controls Checklist   

 Review and assessment of the completed Financial Controls 
Checklist 

  

 Ongoing design of financial controls   

 Ongoing preparation of policies related to financial controls   

 Ongoing testing of financial controls   

 Ongoing monitoring of financial controls testing results   

 Approval of key financial controls and related policies   

 Implementation of financial controls   
 

 

Page 72 of 102



2 
 

Financial controls support the integrity of the Board of Health’s financial statements, support the safeguarding of assets, and assist with the 
prevention and/or detection of significant errors including fraud.  Effective financial controls provide reasonable assurance that financial 
transactions will include the following attributes:  

 Completeness – all financial records are captured and included in the board of health’s financial reports; 

 Accuracy – the correct amounts are posted in the correct accounts; 

 Authorization – the correct levels of authority (i.e. delegation of authority) are in place to approve payments and corrections including data 
entry and computer access; 

 Validity – invoices received and paid are for work performed or products received and the transactions properly recorded; 

 Existence –assets and liabilities and adequate documentation exists to support the item; 

 Error Handling – errors are identified and corrected by appropriate individuals; 

 Segregation of Duties –certain functions are kept separate to support the integrity of transactions and the financial statements; and, 

 Presentation and Disclosure – timely preparation of financial reports in line with the approved accounting method (e.g., Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)). 

 

  

Page 73 of 102



3 
 

Control Objective Controls / Description 
Control Deficiency (If Any) 

And Potential Impact 
1. Controls are in place to 

ensure that financial 
information is accurately 
and completely collected, 
recorded and reported. 

Please select (☒) any following controls that are relevant to your board of health: 

☒ Documented policies and procedures to provide a sense of the organization’s 
direction and address its objectives. 

☒ Define approval limits to authorize appropriate individuals to perform appropriate 
activities. 

☒ Segregation of duties (e.g., ensure the same person is not responsible for 
ordering, recording and paying for purchases). 

☒ An authorized chart of accounts. 

☒ All accounts reconciled on a regular and timely basis. 

☒ Access to accounts is appropriately restricted. 

☒ Regular comparison of budgeted versus actual dollar spending and variance 
analysis. 

☒ Exception reports and the timeliness to clear transactions. 

☒ Electronic system controls, such as access authorization, valid date range test, 
dollar value limits and batch totals, are in place to ensure data integrity.  

☒ Use of a capital asset ledger. 

☒ Delegate appropriate staff with authority to approve journal entries and credits. 

☒ Trial balances including all asset accounts that are prepared and reviewed by 
supervisors on a monthly basis. 

☐ Other – (Please specify)  
 
 
 
 
 

List control deficiencies and their potential impact. 

What is the action plan to correct the identified 
control deficiencies?  Who is responsible to action 
the items? When will they be actioned? 

Page 74 of 102



4 
 

Control Objective Controls / Description 
Control Deficiency (If Any) 

And Potential Impact 
2. Controls are in place to 

ensure that revenue 
receipts are collected and 
recorded on a timely 
basis. 

Please select (☒) any following controls that are relevant to your board of health: 

☐ Independent review of an aging accounts receivable report to ensure timely 
clearance of accounts receivable balances. 

☒ Separate accounts receivable function from the cash receipts function. 

☒ Accounts receivable sub-ledger is reconciled to the general ledger control account 
on a regular and timely basis. 

☒ Original source documents are maintained and secured to support all receipts and 
expenditures. 

☐ Other – (Please specify)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List control deficiencies and their potential impact. 

What is the action plan to correct the identified 
control deficiencies?  Who is responsible to action 
the items? When will they be actioned? 

Page 75 of 102



5 
 

Control Objective Controls / Description 
Control Deficiency (If Any) 

And Potential Impact 
3. Controls are in place to 

ensure that goods and 
services procurement, 
payroll and employee 
expenses are processed 
correctly and in 
accordance with 
applicable policies and 
directives. 

Please select (☒) any following controls that are relevant to your board of health: 

☒ Policies are implemented to govern procurement of goods and services and 
expense reimbursement for employees and board members. 

☒ Use appropriate procurement method to acquire goods and services in 
accordance with applicable policies and directives. 

☒ Segregation of duties is used to apply the three way matching process (i.e. 
matching 1) purchase orders, with 2) packing slips, and with 3) invoices). 

☒ Separate roles for setting up a vendor, approving payment and receiving goods. 

☒ Separate roles for approving purchases and approving payment for purchases. 

☒ Processes in place to take advantage of offered discounts. 

☒ Monitoring of breaking down large dollar purchases into smaller invoices in an 
attempt to bypass approval limits. 

☒ Accounts payable sub-ledger is reconciled to the general ledger control account 
on a regular and timely basis. 

☒ Employee and Board member expenses are approved by appropriate individuals 
for reimbursement and are supported by itemized receipts. 

☒ Original source documents are maintained and secured to support all receipts and 
expenditures. 

☒ Regular monitoring to ensure compliance with applicable directives. 

☒ Establish controls to prevent and detect duplicate payments. 

☒ Policies are in place to govern the issue and use of credit cards, such as corporate, 

purchasing or travel cards, to employees and board members.   

☒ All credit card expenses are supported by original receipts, reviewed and 
approved by appropriate individuals in a timely manner. 

☒ Separate payroll preparation, disbursement and distribution functions. 

☐ Other – (Please specify)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List control deficiencies and their potential impact. 

What is the action plan to correct the identified 
control deficiencies?  Who is responsible to action 
the items? When will they be actioned? 

Page 76 of 102



6 
 

Control Objective Controls / Description 
Control Deficiency (If Any) 

And Potential Impact 
4. Controls are place in the 

fund disbursement 
process to prevent and 
detect errors, omissions 
or fraud. 

Please select (☒) any following controls that are relevant to your board of health: 

☒ Policy in place to define dollar limit for paying cash versus cheque. 

☐ Cheques are sequentially numbered and access is restricted to those with 
authorization to issue payments. 

☒ All cancelled or void cheques are accounted for along with explanation for 
cancellation. 

☒ Process is in place for accruing liabilities.  

☒ Stale-dated cheques are followed up on and cleared on a timely basis. 

☒ Bank statements and cancelled cheques are reviewed on a regular and timely 
basis by a person other than the person processing the cheques / payments. 

☒ Bank reconciliations occur monthly for all accounts and are independently 
reviewed by someone other than the person authorized to sign cheques. 

☐ Other – (Please specify)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

List control deficiencies and their potential impact. 

What is the action plan to correct the identified 
control deficiencies?  Who is responsible to action 
the items? When will they be actioned? 

 

Prepared by : CFO and Manager of Accounting Date: December 19/17 

 Position Title   

Approved by :  Date:  

 Medical Officer of Health/ 
Chief Executive Officer 

  

Received by  the Board of Health at the board meeting held on:  Date:  

 

Page 77 of 102



Page 78 of 102



      Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 

 

 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 

 

To: Algoma Public Health Board of Health  

 

From: Dr. Marlene Spruyt, MOH/CEO 

 Justin Pino, CFO 

 

Date: January 24
th
, 2018    

 

Re: 2018 Insurance Renewal 
 

 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 

 

 

 

ISSUE:   
 

Algoma Public Health (APH) is in the process of completing the agency’s annual renewal 

of its insurance coverage.  The terms of reference of APH’s Finance & Audit Committee 

state that one of the duties of the Committee is to “review and ensure that all risk 

management is complete with respect to all insurance coverage for the board”.  As the 

first Finance & Audit Committee meeting of the board is not scheduled until February 

14
th

 and where the agencies insurance coverage is set to expire on February 14
th

, 

management decided to include the 2018 Insurance Renewal briefing note for the board 

to ensure no disruption in coverage.  Policy Coverage will be reviewed by the Finance & 

Audit Committee at its scheduled February meeting.  If the committee recommends any 

changes to coverage, the Board will be advised at the February board meeting.  One item 

management is recommending to add to the insurance coverage is Cyber Insurance.   

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1) It is recommended that the Board of Health approve the renewal of the 2018 

Insurance coverage for APH. 

 

2) It is recommended that the Board of Health provides the authority to the Finance 

& Audit Committee to commit to any incremental changes with respect to 

insurance coverage.  The Finance & Audit Committee would provide an update to 

the Board of Health of the changes at the February board meeting and highlight 

any costs associated with the changes. 

 

 

   

 

Page 79 of 102



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 2 
 

BACKGROUND:   
 

It is anticipated the 2018 Insurance Coverage will be similar to 2017 with regards to 

limits of insurance.  One change that management is recommending is the addition of 

Cyber Insurance.  There is a significant amount of computer fraud that takes place daily 

in society and will probably increase.  As such there is exposure for APH.   

 

Cyber insurance provides coverage for network and data breaches to APH’s computer 

system.  Specifically, cyber insurance covers the following: 

 

 Loss involving personal or confidential data in electronic form stored on the 

Insured’s own computer system 

 Loss involving personal or confidential data that is stored on a third party 

controlled shared computer network 

 

In order to obtain a quote for Cyber Insurance, Management had to provide the Insurer 

with a formal Disaster Recovery and Data Backup plan.  Once the additional premium is 

known for this added level of coverage, it will be presented to the Finance and Audit 

Committee for their review and a recommendation will be made to the Board.  The 

additional annual premium is unknown at this time. Obtaining Cyber Insurance is in line 

with the Board’s Risk Management objectives.  Management is in support of obtaining 

Cyber Insurance assuming the associated premium costs are acceptable.   

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

The financial commitment to insure APH in 2017 was $95,000.  It is anticipated that 

insurance costs will increase with the addition of Cyber Insurance in 2018.   $95,000 was 

budgeted in APH’s 2018 Operating Budget.     

 

 

CONTACT: 
J. Pino, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Page 80 of 102



FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017 YEAR IN REVIEW

Completed by:  Ian Frazier, CPA, CA
Chair, Finance and Audit Committee

The 2017 year was the third full year for this Committee.  As the Board populated with new
members, Dr. Avery was welcomed to the Committee. With the hiring of a permanent
MOH/CEO and the continual improvement and dialogue with the CFO and his staff the role
of the Committee changed this year.  The Committee transitioned from being more hands-
on to the traditional role of governance which is a very positive indicator of the confidence
and stability in management and the financial reporting.

The Board of Health insurance was on the agenda three times throughout the year.  The
Committee reviewed the current level of insurance coverage, received a presentation from
the current broker and later in the year it received a presentation from another broker who is
interested in working with the Health Unit.  This will be an action item for the Committee in
2018 to review the coverage and evaluate if there are any options or changes to be made.

The Committee reviewed and made sure the request to sole source one (1) significant
contract renewal was within the Procurement Policy and made the recommendation to the
Board to approve such request.

During the year the Committee met with APH external auditor, KPMG, to review the audit
plan, scope of services, any control weaknesses identified (none were found), and reviewed
the content of the 2016 audited financial statements.  It was noted that continued
improvements have been made over previous years.

The Committee continued to work with Management and adjustments were made to the
monthly financial package and the annual operating budget package to the satisfaction of the
Committee.  The annual budget was reviewed and with only a 0.5% increase in municipal
levies proposed to balance budget, the Committee made the recommendation to the Board
to approve the 2018 Public Health Operating and Capital Budget.

Throughout the year the Committee reviewed the Procurement Policy, Reserve Fund Policy
and the Land Control Fee Schedule.  As the 2016 financial results were being approved by
the Ministry, the Committee reviewed and made the recommendation to add $200,000 to the
Health Unit’s reserve fund.

A few possible actions items for the Committee next year could be:

 Request Management to provide list of outstanding contracts, have review
completed for the 2017 year to ensure the procurement policy was followed
for any significant (>$50,000) and/or sole sourcing contracts.

 Discuss if there are any other financial benchmarks/statistically analysis can
be implemented to improve/monitor the ongoing financial results.

In conclusion, it was a very successful year for the Committee. The continued stability and
support by Management has really helped the Committee move back into its governance role
and provides a significant level of confidence in the financial reporting for the Health Unit.

Below is a brief summary of the Committee’s Terms of Reference (TOR) – Roles and
Responsibilities and Action Items the Committee completed to meet the TOR.

Page 81 of 102



FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017 YEAR IN REVIEW

Committee Roles/Responsibilities Action Identified

Review and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the annual Operating and
Capital Plan

The Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board approval
of the 2018 Operating Budget

Review and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the annual audited financial
statements

The Committee met with the KPMG
managing partner and reviewed the
2016 annual audited financial
statements

Review and make recommendations the
annual audit plan, audit fees, and scope of
audit services (engagement letter)

The Committee met with KPMG
representatives and reviewed the
annual audit plan, audit fees, and
scope of services

Meet with external auditors to review the
findings of the audit including but not limited to
the auditor’s Management Letter, any
weaknesses in internal controls and the
Executive Management’s response to such
letter

The Committee met with KPMG
managing partner and reviewed the
Management Letter and any control
weaknesses (none were identified)

Review and report to the Board any changes
in accounting policies or significant
transactions which impact the financial
statements in a significant manner as per the
annual financial statements

Throughout the year any significant
transactions identified were reported
to the Board.  No accounting policies
were changed during 2017 that
impacted the financial statements

Periodically review the need for an internal
audit and if required make such
recommendation to the Board

The Committee has not become
aware of an instance to ask for an
internal audit to be completed in
2017

Monitor the internal audit process, ensure all
items from the internal auditor’s reports are
resolved and assess the internal audit
performance

N/A since no internal audit was
required or completed in 2017

Monitor the effectiveness of internal controls to
ensure compliance with Board policies and
standard accounting principles

This year the Committee reviewed
requests for sole sourcing of services
and purchases greater than $50,000.
All were following policy and
procedures.
The Committee reviewed and made
recommendations to Management to
adjust the financial statement and
budget template

Review and ensure that all risk management
is complete with respect to all insurance
coverage for the Board

The Committee had a presentation
by APH’s current insurance broker
and completed a review of
coverages.  Coverages were ample.
The Committee also reviewed
Management’s identified risks to
ensure residual risk levels were
acceptable

Page 82 of 102



FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017 YEAR IN REVIEW

Committee Roles/Responsibilities Action Identified

Review and make recommendation to the
Board concerning any material asset
acquisitions

The Committee reviewed and
recommended the sole sourcing of
the GIS Information Services

Review and make recommendations to the
Board regarding long-term financial goals and
long-term revenue and expense projections

The Committee reviewed and
recommended adding additional
monies to the reserve fund

Review and make recommendations to the
Board regarding financial, investing, and
banking transactions, providers and signing
officers

The Committee reviewed and
recommended adding additional
monies to the reserve fund

Review other projects or developments as
directed by the Board

No additional projects were assigned
to the Committee during the year

Complete tasks as stated on the Board’s
Annual Activity Plan

The Committee has completed such
tasks as per the Plan

Page 83 of 102



Algoma Public Health Unit 

Annual Governance Committee Report 

January 2018 

Governance Committee Meetings were held: 

 March 1, 2017 

  April 12, 2017 

 June 15, 2017 

 September 13, 2017 

 October 30, 2017 

The Governance Committee Membership consisted of the following: 

Chair - Deborah Graystone 

Board Members: Lee Mason 
                               Ian Frazier 
                               Dr.  Heather O'Brien 
 
APH Staff:  Dr. Marlene Spruyt 
                      Jennifer Loo 
 
Significant progress was made this year in the development of a dashboard reflecting data to 
assist the board in understanding the activity of the Algoma Public Health Unit and facilitate a 
more informed decision making process.  This dashboard is currently being refined with time, 
welcoming board and committee input to ensure an accurate and relevant reflection of the 
operations. The dashboard will include a reflection of Health Protection Indicators and Health 
Promotion Indicators.  The intention is to include this dashboard with Board Meeting Materials. 
 
The Committee reviewed numerous policies. In addition, policies for the "Code of Conduct" and 
"Conflict of Interest" specific to board members were sent for legal review and will return to 
the board for final approval. Policy # 02-05-055 - Board of Health Self-Evaluation Policy was 
amended and approved by the Board. Policy # 02-05-075 - Performance Evaluation for 
MOH/CEO is currently being reviewed and amended.   
 
Outstanding Policy review required for this coming year: 

 02-05-000 - Board of Directors 

 02-05-005 - Report to the Board 

 02-05-010 - Board Minutes - Posting/Circulation (currently being worked on) 

 02-05-020 - Board of Health Travel Policy 

 02-05-025 - Board Member Remuneration 

Page 84 of 102



 02-05-035 - Continuing Education for Board Members 

 02-05-040 - Retirement - Board Recognition  

 02-05-045 - Attendance at Meetings Using Electronic Mean 

 02-05-050 - Retirement - Benefits for Employees 

 02-05-060 - Meetings and Access to Information (currently being worked on) 

 02-05-065 - Algoma Board of Health Reserve Fund 

 02-05-070 - In-Committee Material-Posting/Circulating/Retention (currently being 
worked on) 

 
 A formal process was developed for the Elections of Board Officials and Committee 
Appointments.  
  
A template was developed identifying Board Membership along with appointment type and 
terms.  This will help facilitate succession planning and maintain a skills-based board. 
 
All By-Laws were reviewed, amended as required and approved by the board as follows; 

 By-Law 95-1 - To Regulate the Proceeding of the Board 

 By-Law 95-3 - To Provide for the Duties of the Auditor of the Board 

 By-Law 06-01 - Construction, Demolitions and Change of the Use of Permits and 
Inspections 

 By-Law 06-02 - To Appoint a CBO and Inspectors and to Establish a Code of Conduct for 
the CBO and Inspectors. 

 By-Law 95-2 - To Provide for Banking and Finance 

 By-Law 2015-01 - To Provide for the Management of Property 
 
A New Board Member Orientation Checklist is currently being reviewed and amended by the 
Governance Committee and will be brought to the Board once finalized. 
 
The Annual Board Activity Plan is being reviewed with potential amendments regarding the 
sharing of draft financial statements during off months.  
 
Completed by: 
 
Deborah Graystone 
Chair - Governance Committee 
 
                     

 

 

Page 85 of 102



Page 86 of 102



Page 87 of 102



Page 88 of 102



Page 89 of 102



Page 90 of 102



Page 91 of 102



 

December 5, 2017 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
 
The Honorable Kathleen Wynne 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building, Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 
Email: premier@ontario.ca 
 
Dear Premier Wynne: 
 
Re: Food Insecurity/Nutritious Food Basket Costing 
 
I am very pleased to write to you on behalf of the Board of Health for the 
Sudbury & District Health Unit to share our sincere appreciation for two 
recent provincial policy decisions in support of food security, a serious 
public health concern. The basic income pilot, which includes a 
commitment to work with First Nations communities, and the commitment 
to increase the minimum wage rate are two key policy initiatives that are 
expected to significantly support food security for Ontarians.   
 
The Board of Health for the Sudbury & District Health Unit has a keen 
interest in food security. We recently reviewed our 2017 data from the 
annual Nutritious Food Basket Survey and concurred that to further 
support food security, additional income policies and standardized 
approaches to monitoring food costs are needed at both the provincial 
and federal levels.  
 
At its meeting on November 23, 2017, the Sudbury & District Board of 
Health carried the following resolution #48-17: 

 
WHEREAS the Sudbury & District Board of Health has 
monitored the cost of healthy eating on an annual basis in 
accordance with the Nutritious Food Basket Protocol and the 
Population Health Assessment and Surveillance Protocol per 
the Ontario Public Health Standards 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS the draft Standards for Public Health Programs and 
Services, 2017 do not include the Nutritious Food Basket 
Protocol which is a concern because food costing data 
gathered by public health units each year is important for 
policy and program development; and 
 
WHEREAS the Canadian Community Health Survey’s 
Household Food Security Survey Module (HFSSM) is a 
measure of food security but is not always a mandatory core 
module; and 

Page 92 of 102

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
https://wdgpublichealth.ca/sites/default/files/file-attachments/meetings/standards_for_public_health_programs_and_services_consultation_document.pdf
https://wdgpublichealth.ca/sites/default/files/file-attachments/meetings/standards_for_public_health_programs_and_services_consultation_document.pdf


Letter Re: Food Insecurity/Nutritious Food Basket Costing 
December 5, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
WHEREAS regular and consistent monitoring of household food insecurity 
is essential for evidence-informed policy decision making; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sudbury & District Board of Health 
request that social assistance rates be increased immediately to reflect the 
cost of the Nutritious Food Basket and local housing costs; and 
 
THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health advocate to the Province to 
ensure continued consistent local surveillance and monitoring of food 
costing by public health units through the continuation of a Nutritious Food 
Basket Protocol and Guidance document; and 
 
THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health advocate to Statistics Canada 
for the HFSSM to become a core module of the Canadian Community Health 
Survey; and  
 
FURTHER THAT the Sudbury & District Board of Health share this motion 
and supporting materials with community agencies, boards, municipalities, 
elected representatives and others as appropriate throughout the SDHU 
catchment area. 

 
Thank you for your attention to the important public health matters raised in this motion. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Penny Sutcliffe, MD, MHSc, FRCPC 
Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
 

Encl. 
  

cc: The Honorable Navdeep Bains, Minister of Innovation, Science and Economic Development 
 Ms. Roselle Martino, Assistant Deputy Minister, Population and Public Health Division 

Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Mr. Marc Serré, MP, Nickel Belt 
Mr. Paul Lefebvre, MP, Sudbury 
Ms. Carol Hughes, MP, Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing 
Mr. Glenn Thibeault, MPP, Sudbury 
Ms. France Gélinas, MPP, Nickel Belt 
Mr. Michael Mantha, MPP, Algoma-Manitoulin 
Dr. P. Sutcliffe, Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
All Ontario Boards of Health 
Constituent Municipalities within the SDHU catchment area 
First Nations within the SDHU catchment area 

Page 93 of 102



2017 NUTRITIOUS FOOD BASKET SCENARIOS

Households with children Single person households

Scenariosa

Ontario 
Works

Minimum 
Wage 
Earner

Median 
Ontario 
Income

Ontario 
Works

Ontario 
Works

ODSP* Senior 
OAS / 
GIS**

Income
Total Monthly 
Income 
(after tax) $2,568 $3,287    $7,896 $2,353 $806 $1,238 $1,675

Expenses

3 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 1 BedroomBachelor

Monthly Rent
(may include 
heat/hydro)b

Foodc

$1,111 $1,111 $1,111 $990 $600 $776 $776

$884 $884 $884 $668 $297 $297 $216
Funds remaining for other basic needs

$573 $1,292 $5,901 $695 ($91) $165 $683
% of Income 
Required for 
Rent
% of Income 
Required to 
Purchase 
Healthy Food

43% 34% 14% 42% 74% 63% 46%

34% 27% 11% 28% 37% 24% 13%

a -  As applicable, all scenarios are based on the following:
 1 male adult, 1 female adult, 1 girl, 1 boy, 1 female older adult.

b - Rental costs calculations are from the Rental Market Report: Ontario Highlights. Canada Mortgage   
 and Housing Corporation, Fall 2017.

 https://www03.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/catalog/productDetail.cfm?lang=en&cat=102&itm=1&fr=1472132413287

c - Reference: Nutritious Food Basket Data Results 2017 for the 
 Sudbury & District Health Unit – Includes Household Size Adjustment Factors.

For more information, please call 705.522.9200, ext. 257.
* Ontario Disability Support Program 
** Old Age Security / Guaranteed Income Supplement

Ce document est disponible en français.
 © Sudbury & District Health Unit, 2017

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 Scenario 4 Scenario 5 Scenario 6 Scenario 7

Page 94 of 102



SCÉNARIOS DU PANIER À PROVISIONS NUTRITIF - 2017

Ménages avec enfants Ménages composés d’une
seule personne

Scénariosa

Ontario 
au travail

Salaire 
minimum

Revenu 
ontarien 
médian

Ontario 
au travail

Ontario 
au travail

POSPH* Personne 
âgée 

SV/SRG**

Revenu
Revenu 
mensuel total 
(après impôt) 2 568 $ 3 287 $ 7 896 $ 2 353 $ 806 $ 1 238 $ 1 675 $

Dépenses
3 chambres 2 chambres 1 chambreStudio

Loyer 
mensuel 

(peut inclure 
le chauffage 
et l’électricité)b

Nourriturec

1 111 $ 1 111 $ 1 111 $ 990 $ 600 $ 776 $ 776 $

884 $ 884 $ 884 $ 668 $ 297 $ 297 $ 216 $
Argent qui reste pour d’autres besoins essentiels

573 $ 1 292 $ 5 901 $ 695 $ (91 $) 165 $ 683 $
% du revenu 
requis pour 
le loyer
% de revenu 
requis pour 
acheter des 
aliments 
sains

43 % 34 % 14 % 42 % 74 % 63 % 46 %

34 % 27 % 11 % 28 % 37 % 24 % 13 %

a - Le cas échéant, les scénarios sont basés sur les éléments suivants : 
 1 homme, 1 femme, 1 fille, 1 garçon, 1 femme âgée.
b - Les calculs des frais de loyer proviennent du Rapport sur le marché locatif : Faits saillants – Ontario.
 Société canadienne d’hypothèques et de logement, l’automne 2017. 
 https://www03.cmhc-schl.gc.ca/catalog/productDetail.cfm?lang=en&cat=102&itm=1&fr=1472132413287
c - Référence : Données du panier à provisions nutritif – Résultats 2017 du 
 Service de santé publique de Sudbury et du district – Comprend les facteurs 
 d’ajustement en fonction de la taille des ménages.
Pour avoir plus de détails, appelez le 705.522.9200, poste 257. 
* Programme ontarien de soutien aux personnes handicapées  
** Pension de la Sécurité de la vieillesse / Supplément de revenu garanti

Scénario 1 Scénario 2 Scénario 3 Scénario 4 Scénario 5 Scénario 6 Scénario 7

This document is available in English.Traduit par un traducteur agréé.
© Service de santé publique de Sudbury et du district, 2017 Page 95 of 102



1 

January 5, 2018 

Hon. Helena Jaczek 

Minister of Community and Social Services 

6th Floor, Hepburn Block 

80 Grosvenor Street 

Toronto, Ontario M7A 1E9 

Dear Minister Jaczek, 

On behalf of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) and the Ontario 

Public Health Association (OPHA),  we are writing to provide feedback on the recently 

released “Income Security: A Roadmap for Change” report. 

Our associations, representing the public health sector, are member-based and not-for-profit.  

OPHA represents the public health workforce and is comprised of a diverse membership of 10 

public health and community health associations and individuals from the public health, health 

care, academic, voluntary and private sector. alPHa provides leadership to the boards of health 

and public health units in Ontario. Membership is open to the 36 public health units in Ontario. 

alPHa works closely with board of health members, medical and associate medical officers of 

health, and senior public health managers in each of the public health disciplines – nursing, 

inspections, nutrition, dentistry, health promotion, epidemiology and business administration.   

Together, our associations have established a joint Work Group on Health Equity.  The Work 

Group focuses on advocating for policies at all levels that reduce inequities in health and on 

promoting activities that address the social and economic determinants of health within the 

mandate of public health units in Ontario. The interest of our members in seeing improvements 

made to the provincial social security system arises from our understanding of current research 

linking lower incomes with poorer health status and outcomes. This link is also well outlined in 

the Roadmap Report. Our Health Equity Work Group reviewed the Report and prepared this 

response. 

Previously, one or both of our associations have made submissions on related issues such as 

Basic Income (in 2015), the Ontario Poverty Reduction Strategy (in 2013 and 2008), the 

minimum wage (in 2013), and the 2012 report from the Commission for the Review of Social 

Assistance in Ontario. In 2017, alPHa and OPHA passed Resolutions on the Public Health 

sector’s Response to the Truth and Reconciliation Commission Calls to Action. 

Page 96 of 102



2 

First, we want to commend your government for commissioning this broad review of the Ontario 

income security system. The three working groups represented a wide range of perspectives 

layering expertise with lived experience and Indigenous representation to focus on low income 

and income security issues. 

The Roadmap promotes taking a fundamentally different approach, putting people – and their 

needs and rights – at the centre of the income security system. We believe the major directions 

and recommendations of this report are insightful and far-reaching. If implemented, we believe 

that the proposed changes would have a significant impact on income and health.   

We are particularly supportive of the following areas: 

 Adoption of the six guiding principles as a basis for change is a crucial step needed to

move away from the current ‘punitive’ system. The six guiding principles: adequacy,

human rights, reconciliation, access to services, economic and social inclusion, and

equity and fairness follow from the recommended new vision for Ontario’s income

security system, in which:

“All individuals are treated with respect and dignity and are inspired and equipped to

reach their full potential. People have equitable access to a comprehensive and

accountable system of income and in-kind support that provides an adequate level of

financial assistance and promotes economic and social inclusion, with particular

attention to the needs and experience of Indigenous peoples” (p.69).

 Making a commitment to moving towards income adequacy

o Establishing an adequate Minimum Income Standard that sets a goal for income

assistance programs as per the recommendations made in the Report about first

using the Low Income Measure (LIM) - with 30% more for people with disabilities

- and eventually moving towards developing a transparent Ontario Market Basket

Measure.

 Providing immediate help to those in deepest poverty and continuing to raise income

assistance rates to meet the goal of the Minimum Income Standard

o It is imperative to move on making regular and sustained increases in income

support levels - the steps as outlined in the Report provide a solid plan to follow

to progress toward income adequacy. We strongly urge the government to

provide immediate increases in assistance levels to those in greatest need.

 Improving the broader income security system

o Ensuring that all low-income adults receive Pharmacare, dental, vision, hearing,

and medical transportation benefits, phased in over the next ten years starting

with prescription drug coverage for all low-income adults.

o Creating a portable housing benefit is critically needed now in Ontario.

 Transforming the social assistance system, including a First Nations-based approach

o Transforming social assistance including legislative reform and establishing a

culture of collaboration and problem solving, trauma-informed, equity-informed

and anti-racist practices.

Page 97 of 102



3 

o Taking an ‘assured income’ approach for disability, that is, establishing a basic

income for those with a disability.

o Creating a flat rate structure in Ontario Works and modernizing Ontario Works

income and asset rules

 Respecting First Nations jurisdiction and ensuring adequate funding

o It is reassuring to see a substantial focus on Indigenous populations as having

considerable need and a very unique context, including the recommendation for

self governance of social assistance.

 In order to increase accountability, we support the Roadmap’s recommendation to
ensure government reporting take place, with follow-up by a third party, concerning the
changes that are planned. A performance measurement framework should be put in
place on both an individual and system level to assess how these policy changes are
affecting our communities and health.

We would like to see reform of the income security system go further than proposed in 

the Report in certain areas, as follows: 

 In terms of Recommendation #5 about making essential health benefits available to all

low-income people starting with those in the deepest poverty, we believe dental

coverage should be extended to low income Ontarians beyond the age of 65 as many

low income seniors do not have insurance coverage.

 We also recommend that access to mental health counselling services be extended to

all low income individuals.

 In addition to the portable housing benefit recommended in the Report, which we

strongly support, we believe the provincial government needs to take more measures to

increase the supply of affordable, livable housing. As part of this, we urge the

government to explore provincial participation in the recently announced National

Housing Strategy.

 We believe a basic income approach should be taken to Ontario Works and the entire

low income population - working or not.

In summary, we are very supportive of the recommendations and general direction of the 

Roadmap, and hope that it receives positive and swift action by your government. The Report 

sets out a progressive, phased ten-year plan for how change should happen, and the 

investments that government should make in the first three years. As a first priority, we 

emphasize the need for your government to act immediately to increase social security rates. 

This government must take action now to make life better for low-income people in Ontario.   

We understand the Ministry will release its own report taking into consideration the strategies 

presented in this document. With this in mind, please accept our appreciation for the opportunity 

to share our thoughts with you. 

Page 98 of 102



4 

We would value an opportunity to engage further with the government on this issue.  Should you 

wish to discuss our feedback in greater detail, please contact Pegeen Walsh, Executive 

Director, OPHA at pwalsh@opha.on.ca or Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, alPHa at 

loretta@alphaweb.org.  

Sincerely, 

President     President  

Association of Local Public Health Agencies  Ontario Public Health Association  

cc: 

Hon. Kathleen Wynne, Premier of Ontario 
Hon. Charles Sousa, Minister of Finance  
Hon. Peter Milczyn, Minister of Housing and Minister Responsible for the Poverty Reduction 
Strategy 

Page 99 of 102



Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

Jackson Square, 185 King Street, Peterborough, ON K9J 2R8 
P: 705-743-1000 or 1-877-743-0101 

F: 705-743-2897 
peterboroughpublichealth.ca 

 

 
 

 
 
November 23, 2017 
 
The Honourable Dr. Eric Hoskins 
Minister of Health and Long-Term Care 
10th Floor, Hepburn Block 
80 Grosvenor Street 
Toronto, ON M7A 2C4 
ehoskins.mpp@liberal.ola.org 
 
Dear Minister Hoskins: 
 
Re:  Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy Modernization  
 
At its meeting held on November 8, 2017, the Board of Health for Peterborough Public Health considered 
correspondence from the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit regarding the “Smoke-Free Ontario 
Modernization Report” of the Executive Steering Committee. 
 
The Board of Health for Peterborough Public Health is very encouraged by the comprehensive and progressive 
nature of the Executive Steering Committee’s October 10th report and recommendations to modernize the 
Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy and reduce commercial tobacco use in Ontario.  The enhanced focus on the 
tobacco industry strikes at the root cause of the epidemic of tobacco-related illness in Ontario.  Ontario’s 
modernized strategy must move beyond incrementally increasing restrictive measures to changing how the 
tobacco industry operates in Ontario.   
 
Substantial tax increases and efforts to reduce availability and supply of tobacco products are the strong 
measures needed to prevent tobacco use and motivate and support quit attempts.  Additional policies to 
prevent youth from initiating tobacco use such as raising the minimum age required to purchase tobacco to 21 
years old and investing in sustained mass media campaigns will be critical to achieving targets in tobacco 
control. 
 
Prevention strategies alone will not achieve a substantially reduced smoking prevalence in Ontario.  Ontarians 
addicted to tobacco products must receive evidence-based cessation help. Certainly, there is substantial 
evidence to support strengthening the tobacco cessation system so that there is equitable access to cessation 
resources for all Ontarians who use tobacco products. In addition, new approaches are needed to specifically 
target populations with the highest smoking rates. The Board of Health also supports engagement with 
Indigenous peoples to further develop and implement Indigenous specific strategies.   
 
The recommendations proposed by the Executive Steering Committee are the range of strategies that are 
critical to meeting Ontario’s goal of the lowest rates of tobacco use in Canada and the tobacco endgame 
target of less than 5% of the population using tobacco products by 2035.  Let’s work together to implement  
 

Page 1 of 2 

Page 100 of 102

mailto:ehoskins.mpp@liberal.ola.org
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/common/ministry/publications/reports/sfo_modernization_esc_2017/sfo_modernization_esc_report.pdf
http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/common/ministry/publications/reports/sfo_modernization_esc_2017/sfo_modernization_esc_report.pdf


Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

 
 
these strategies to eliminate the 13,000 preventable deaths from tobacco use annually and achieve the end 
goal of tobacco-free living.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Original signed by 
 
Mayor Mary Smith 
Chair, Board of Health  
 
/ag 
Encl. 
 
cc: Local MPPs 

Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Page 101 of 102



 

October 25, 2017    
 
Dr. Eric Hoskins 
Minister – Minister’s office 
Minister of Health and Long-Term Care 
Hepburn Block, 10th Floor 
80 Grosvenor St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 2C4 
 
Dear Minister Hoskins, 
 
On March 15, 2017, the Board of Health for the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit passed a motion 
to write to the federal government in supporting the approaches identified at the 2016 summit, A 
Tobacco Endgame for Canada and its target of reducing tobacco use to less than five per cent by 
2035. Accordingly, we communicated with the Ministry of Health and Long-Term care in 
recommending that modernization of the Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy include the recommendations 
identified in the tobacco endgame.  In supporting these recommendations, the Province and its 
partners can successfully address and minimize the preventable death and disease caused by 
tobacco product use and reduce the unmaintainable drain it places on our health care system. 
 
The Board of Health is therefore pleased to review the recently released “Smoke-Free Ontario 
Modernization” Report of the Executive Steering Committee. In particular, the Board of Health is 
encouraged by the report’s evidence-based recommendations, supports and strategies which identify 
actionable and achievable outcomes for future action that are in keeping with the resolutions by the 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies that identified the need for intensified and targeted 
tobacco controls to protect and promote the health of Ontario residents. Further, the Board of Health 
commends the Executive Steering Committee in recognizing that Ontario is closer to ending the 
tobacco epidemic despite on-going efforts by the tobacco industry who demonstrate a profound, self-
serving disinterest in its customers’ health and a calculating, sophisticated determination to resist any 
regulation. Thus, The Board of Health recommends that the province proceed with developing a 
renewed Smoke-Free Ontario strategy committing to the endgame target with a smoking prevalence of 
less than 5% by 2035, by employing the bold strategies recommended in the Smoke Free Ontario 
Modernization report.  
 
Ontario’s success in alleviating this tobacco epidemic requires strong leadership and action by your 
Ministry to strengthen and create legislation and supports that will diminish addiction to products that 
are the single greatest threat to the health of Ontarians.  We look forward to working with the province 
as it updates the Smoke-Free Ontario strategy.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 
 
Scott Warnock, 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
c. Simcoe Muskoka Municipal Councils 
 Ontario Boards of Health 
 Central Local Health Integration Network 

North Simcoe Muskoka Local Health Integration Network 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 

Page 102 of 102


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	Call to Order
	Declaration of Conflict of Interest

	Election of Officers
	Appointment of Board of Health Chair
	Appointment of Board of Health First Vice-Chair
	Appointment of Board of Health Second Vice-Chair
	Call for Committee Members for the Finance & Audit Committe and the Governance Standing Committee

	Adoption of Agenda
	January 24, 2018- Agenda 

	Adoption of Minutes
	Delegation/Presentations
	Safe Water and Septic Systems

	Business Arising
	02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest Policy

	Reports to Board
	Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Report
	January 2018 Report
	2018 Workplan - Ontario Public Health Standards Organizational Requirements

	Financial Reporting
	Draft Financial Statements for the Period Ending November 30, 2017
	2017 Financial Controls Checklist
	2018-19 CAPS Budget
	2018 Insurance Renewal Final

	Committee Reports
	2017 Finance and Audit Committe Year End Report
	2017 Governance Standing Committee Year End Report


	New Business
	Correspondence
	Cannabis
	Letter to APH from Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada

	Expert Panel
	Letter to Minister Hoskins from the Township of Spanish
	Resolution from the Township of Dubreuilville

	Food Insecurity/Nutritious Food Basket Costing
	Letter to Premier Wynne from Sudbury and District Health Unit

	Income Security
	Letter to Minister Jaczek from OPHA and alPHa

	Smoke-Free Ontario Strategy Modernization
	Letter to Minister Hoskins from Peterborough Public Health


	Items for Information
	Addendum
	In Committee
	Adoption of In-Committee Minutes dated October 25, 2017
	Litigation or Potential Litigation
	Labour Relations and Employee Negotiations

	Open Meeting
	Resolutions Resulting From In Committees
	Announcements
	Next Board of Health Meeting - Date

	Adjournment

